
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Shadow Executive 
 
To: Councillors Scott (Chair), Gunnell, King, Looker, Merrett, 

Potter and Simpson-Laing 
 

Date: Wednesday, 25 March 2009 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point, Members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 

To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of any exempt information relating to briefings on 
Executive business, as detailed on the agenda for the Executive 
meeting to be held on 31 March 2009, under Schedule 12A to 
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 
2006. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the Shadow Executive meeting 
held on 14 January 2009. 
 

4. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Shadow Executive’s remit can do so. The 
deadline for registering is Tuesday 24 March 2009, at 5.00 pm. 



 

5. Briefings on Executive Business   
 

To receive any briefings requested on Executive business for 31 
March 2009. 
 
[Please note that the reports relating to these items will be 
published on the Council’s website on Friday 20 March 2009. The 
website address is www.york.gov.uk  Copies of the Executive 
agenda and reports can also be obtained by telephoning 
Democracy Support Group on York (01904) 551088.] 
 

6. Briefing Report on the City Centre Experience  (Pages 3 - 18) 
 

This report responds to the Shadow Executive’s request for a 
briefing report on innovative thinking to establish what kind of city 
centre experience we want people to have, taking account of 
potential funding from Yorkshire Forward for the rejuvenation and 
regeneration of city centre areas. 
 

7. Any Other Matters which the Chair decides are urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer:  
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 

• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 

If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING SHADOW EXECUTIVE 

DATE 14 JANUARY 2009 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS POTTER (VICE-CHAIR, IN THE 
CHAIR), GUNNELL, KING, LOOKER, MERRETT, 
SCOTT (FOR EXECUTIVE ITEM 8 ONLY) AND 
SIMPSON-LAING 

120. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.  

Councillor Potter declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in Executive 
Item 9 (Review of Public Bus Services in York) as a member of the 
management committee of York Wheels. 

121. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

RESOLVED: That the press and public not be excluded from the 
meeting as there was no exempt information relating 
to briefings on Executive business, as detailed on the 
agenda for the Executive meeting to be held on 20 
January 2009, under Schedule 12A to Section 100A of 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) 
Order 2006. 

122. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last meeting of the Shadow 
Executive held on 26 November 2008 be approved 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

123. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

124. BRIEFINGS ON EXECUTIVE BUSINESS  

The Shadow Executive received briefings on the following items of 
business on the agenda for the Executive meeting on 20 January 2009: 

• Affordable Housing Initiatives (agenda item 8) 

• Review of Public Bus Services in York (agenda item 9) 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



In relation to the former item, Members requested legal advice on the 
possible use of compulsory purchase powers to acquire land for affordable 
housing development.1

With regards to the latter item, officers agreed to provide an email 
response to Members on how much fare paying bus patronage had 
dropped.2

Action Required  
1 - To provide the legal advice;  
2 - To provide the email response.   

SS  
SS  

125. BRIEFING REPORT ON COUNCIL TAX DISCOUNTS FOR SECOND 

HOMES AND EMPTY PROPERTIES  

Members received a briefing report which responded to their query as to 
whether or not there were any options open to the Council under present 
legislation for abolishing or altering the Council Tax reduction currently 
available for second homes and empty properties. 

The briefing report explained that a minimum discount of 10% was set by 
legislation with regards to second homes, which was currently applied by 
the Council, and that no minimum discount was prescribed by legislation in 
relation to empty properties, with the Council currently levying the full rate 
of Council Tax in these cases. 

Members thanked officers for preparing the briefing report and attending 
the meeting. 

RESOLVED:  That the briefing report be noted. 

REASON:  To inform and update the Shadow Executive. 

126. CHAIR'S COMMENTS  

The Shadow Executive recorded their thanks to Simon Copley, Democracy 
Officer, who was leaving City of York Council, for his work over the past 
seven years and their good wishes for the future. 

CLLR R POTTER, Vice-Chair, in the Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 6.15 pm]. 

Page 2



 

 

 

  

 

   

 

Shadow Executive 25
th

 March 2009 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy  
 

CITY CENTRE EXPERIENCE 

 Summary 

1. The Shadow Executive has requested a briefing report on innovative thinking 
to establish what kind of a city centre experience we want people to have, 
taking account of potential for funding from Yorkshire Forward for the 
rejuvenation and regeneration of city centre areas.  This report sets out 
progress to date.   

Background 

2. Members will be aware that the York City Centre Partnership (YCCP) was 
launched in October 2005 and was a public/private partnership company 
limited by guarantee.  The company had been supported by Yorkshire 
Forward, the City of York Council, York Business Pride, Land Securities, 
Marks and Spencer and other companies.  Its aims were to enhance the 
economic vitality and viability of the City Centre for the benefit of all who live, 
work, invest in or visit the Centre.  A primary objective of the company was to 
consult and research the establishment of a Business Improvement District 
(BID) in the City Centre of York.  A BID is a partnership arrangement through 
which the local authority and the local business community agree to take 
forward practical schemes to benefit that business community; it is funded 
through a compulsory levy linked to the level of business rates by those who 
operate commercially within the predetermined boundaries of the BID's 
effective area.  The company sought to explore with city centre businesses 
the concept of a Business Improvement District for the foot-streets.  
Significant research was undertaken, the end result of which was the decision 
taken at the YCCP Board meeting in November 2007 that it was too early to 
take the concept further at the present time.  The overall high quality of most 
of the built environment and the services necessary to maintain it in this state, 
the level of marketing and promotion and the broad appeal of the city were 
felt sufficiently good enough to preclude the need for a BID to address such 
issues (unlike many other towns and cities that have recently created BIDs).  
Nor was there a single substantial project promising a substantial return on 
investment that a collective business levy could contribute to via a BID, to 
guarantee its successful completion.    

3. The costs of providing a Chief Executive to the City Centre Partnership  would 
be borne largely by a grant awarded by Yorkshire Forward, related to making 
progress with the BID. This enabled the Company to appoint a Chief 
Executive for a fixed term of 3 years, which finished in September 2008.  In 

Agenda Item 6Page 3



 

 

the absence of further funding being available, the Company  also decided to 
cease trading, pending a review of partnership arrangements for the City 
Centre.   

4. Since the establishment of the Company and following the recent 
Government Spending Review and the publication of a Sub-National Review 
of Economic Development, the Government is now planning to introduce 
legislation for a scheme for supplementary business rates.  The 
Government's proposals include the introduction of a power for local 
authorities to raise and retain local supplements on the national business 
rate, subject to the revenue raised only being used for spending on economic 
development, a national upper limit of 2p in the pound and an exemption for 
properties liable for business rates with a rateable value of £50,000 or less. 

5. In terms of developing an overall vision and strategy for the City Centre, the 
City Centre Area Action Plan will provide the first comprehensive review in 
over 40 years since the Esher report of 1968.  The Future York Group Report, 
June 2007, included a key recommendation that the Council prepare a 
Masterplan to guide development and investment decisions, and promote 
investment: “we see the historic city centre, representing the international 
image of York and also its economic powerhouse, as the priority for such a 
masterplan”.   

6. The York City Centre AAP is the ideal process from which to deliver a City 
Centre Masterplan for York.  The AAP will provide a 20 year vision, strategy 
and policies to build on its current strengths and address key weaknesses.  
The AAP will provide a robust grounding within the York LDF, conformity with 
national and regional planning objectives and continuity with the aims of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy, as well as having statutory status once 
adopted.   Key elements of the City Centre AAP will be:   
 �  Policies - a suite of policies and allocations to guide future 
development.         
 �  A Spatial Masterplan - this will articulate the spatial vision and 
objectives for the city centre - focusing on public realm improvements, 
transport and accessibility proposals, and projects and initiatives for the main 
‘action areas’ within the city centre, including regeneration of the peripheral 
areas.  

7. The intention is to develop a long-term strategy for the city centre.  Quick 
fixes rarely work; what is needed is a sustained and durable commitment to 
transform York’s urban realm.  A willingness to make a long-term commitment 
is essential if the AAP is to deliver a successful Spatial Masterplan.  The 
proposed format is to produce three parallel documents: one linked to the 
Issues and Options consultation and providing reasons for selecting and 
discounting options as well as explaining the evidence base; a second 
document containing the Policy Framework for the city centre; and a third in 
the format of a spatial master plan with site-specific proposals.  
  

8. The third document, the Spatial Masterplan, is key to presenting and 
illustrating the ideas and proposals to improve the city centre.  It will aim to 
engage the public more enthusiastically by focusing on a public realm 
strategy.  Suggested improvements to the city centre spaces and links have 

Page 4



 

 

received interest and support through public consultation, and these can be 
identified, prioritised and phased over the plan period.  Through this work, 
early wins can be identified and secured, and the importance of the city 
centre’s public realm can be demonstrated.  By identifying a number of 
preferred projects (‘Favourites’) and swiftly moving through to place-checking 
and design options, the profile for the work of York will be raised, and 
attention will be drawn to this first review of York city centre since the Esher 
Report of 1968. 

9. The wider policy framework will remain the foundation for these projects, and 
other projects will be added and coordinated as the plan is monitored and 
reviewed.  The linkages between areas of the city centre are extremely 
important, and these will also be subject to review and design/ accessibility 
analysis. 

10. Projects will need to attract funding from a number of public and private 
sources.  Yorkshire Forward has already committed resources towards the 
first stages of public realm audit and masterplanning, and a number of CYC 
funding sources are available.  A copy of the initial proposals for engaging 
with Yorkshire Forward is appended to this report.  In addition, private funding 
can be attracted through partnership investment and legal (Section 106) 
contributions.  Lottery funding and other sources will also be pursued.  One 
specific issue raised by the Shadow Executive concerns the provision of a 
permanent power supply underneath Parliament Street which could be 
accessed the length and breadth of the street for festivals and markets, to 
limit the high costs of the current system.  Investigations have been 
undertaken to consider the most appropriate solution: this would be the 
provision of 10 “pop up” style connection units at various locations along 
Parliament Street.  The likely cost of these would be £42,500 for purchase in 
total, with the cost of installation being more than the cost of purchase.  This 
would need to be incorporated into any programme of public realm 
improvement for Parliament Street.  By way of comparison, the City Centre 
team currently spend in the region of £15,000 per annum for electrical 
provision for our own events, with additional charges paid by third parties for 
their own events. 

11. Key project areas identified  as part of the initial work on the City Centre 
Action Plan so far include:- 

• Newgate Market 

• Parliament Street/ St. Sampson’s Square 

• Castle/ Piccadilly 

• St. Leonard’s/ Museum Gardens to NRM/ York Station (re. Cultural Quarter) 

• Ouse riverside area/ rear of Coney Street 

• Pavement (All Saints Church to Stonebow, including junction with Piccadilly) 

• Gateway Streets (Walmgate, Micklegate, Gillygate, Fossgate, Goodramgate, 
Stonebow, others ?..) 

 
 

Page 5



 

 

Next steps for the City Centre Area Action Plan 
 

Jan 09 – Feb 09 

• Complete the review of Issues & Options consultation findings and identify 
preferred options/ justify deletion of any options. 

• Identify and begin to prioritise key projects in the city centre. 

• Commission evidence base documents to support the AAP, with input from 
Yorkshire Forward.  These key documents may include Public Realm and 
Open Space Quality Audit, Analysis of Key Views, City Centre Accessibility 
Masterplan (incorporating the Footstreets Review), and Ouse walkway 
Delivery Study. 

• Also crucial to the production of the Preferred Options document will be the 
findings of a number of other evidence base documents, including: Central 
Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal, Retail Study, Employment Land 
Review and the Open Space Study.  

March – May 09 

• Report to Without Walls Board in March with summary of consultation 
findings so far, recommendations on involvement of Board, and next steps. 

• Report to the LDF Working Group in May with recommendations on which 
options should be the Preferred Options - through an analysis of the 
consultation findings, the conclusions of the Sustainability Statement and 
any emerging evidence. 

• Begin drafting Preferred Options (inputting new evidence as it evolves). 

June 09 – August 09 

• Produce revised / summarised and graphically illustrated Spatial Masterplan 
draft. 

• Ongoing involvement of stakeholders in the production of the Preferred 
Options document. 

• Ongoing liaison with the Cultural Quarter Scrutiny Committee. 

• Ongoing negotiations with potential developers of the Castle Piccadilly site. 

• Ongoing consideration of the relationship with the York Northwest AAP. 

• Ongoing Sustainability Appraisal of options. 

• Ongoing review of Soundness issues. 

• Ongoing review of delivery issues / funding sources. 

Page 6



 

 

• Review of potential allocations, capacity issues etc. 

• Report to LDF Working Group with Preferred Options report, Sustainability 
Statement and Consultation strategy and material.  

September 09 – October 09 

Undertake a public consultation on the Preferred Options 

Options and Analysis 

12. None – this is a briefing report for information.  

Consultation 

13. Initial consultation has taken place with the Without Walls Local Strategic 
Partnership. The timetable above outlines the process for further consultation.  
There is no set date for the Preferred Options consultation but we intend to 
consult again widely in September 2009 in order to keep within the projected 
LDF timetable set out in the Local Development Scheme.  For public realm 
proposals to be consulted on as part of this process we will need to have the 
broad concept and principles with sketch illustrations agreed by Summer 
2009. The publication and consultation of the Submission AAP is timetabled 
for February 2010.  The document will be submitted in May 2010, with Public 
Examination in June 2010. The aim is to have the AAP adopted by the 
Council in December 2010.   

14. Initial consultation has also taken place with the Retailers Forum and the 
Retail Strategy Group.  This will continue in line with the above timetable.  

Implications 

15. There are no financial, legal or other implications from this briefing report.  

Recommendation 

16. That the Shadow Executive comments on the above report. 

 Reason:  To help shape the effectiveness of future action. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Bill Woolley 
Director of City Strategy  

Rob Beardsworth 
City Development 
Roger Ranson 
Assistant Director Economic 
Development & Partnerships  
Phone No:  01904 551614 
 

Report Approved  � Date 16 March 2009   

 

All   Wards Affected:   

 
For further information please contact the author of the report  

Page 7



 

 

 

 

Background Papers:    
 
Annex – York City Centre: Public Realm and Spatial Masterplan 
 
 
 

Page 8



          ANNEX 

 
York City Centre: Public Realm and Spatial Masterplan 
to support the City Centre Area Action Plan  
 
Bid to Yorkshire Forward for Support  
 

February 2009  
 
Summary   
 

Yorkshire Forward have offered the City of York Council support to help develop and 
deliver a clear vision and masterplan for York. We have carefully considered the 
proposal from EDAW but consider it too wide in scope. Much work has already been 
done on the matters they set out  as part of the recent review of our Sustainable 
Community Strategy and in progressing the LDF Core Strategy and City Centre Area 
Action Plan. We don't want to duplicate this as it would not be an effective use of 
resources and could create public/stakeholder confusion.  
 
Instead we would like your support to develop key elements of the City Centre Area 
Action Plan and in particular input into the development of a Spatial Masterplan for 
the city centre which will be a key component of the AAP.  We are seeking your 
support to carry out a thorough audit and analysis of the public realm in the city 
centre and its key linkages using the 'Placecheck' approach.  This will be a unique 
and comprehensive review of the city centre spaces and street network.  We would 
also like urban design support to help develop the spatial strategy and articulate it 
through strong visuals and to help us to articulate plans for the urban network (the 
public realm) and the key 'action areas' identified in the AAP.  
 
We would also seek your support to develop the Accessibility Masterplan for the city 
centre, which will clearly be a key driver and influence for the wider spatial 
Masterplan. This will consider issues of access, parking, public transport, the 
extension of York’s footstreets, and linkages with key areas such as York Northwest. 
 
We believe the approach of using consultants to support key strands of work on the 
AAP, is better than asking consultants to carry out a complete vision and strategy for 
the city centre. The latter approach would duplicate work that has already been done 
or is underway, and would create confusion as to the role of the 'City Centre AAP' vs 
the 'city centre vision and masterplan'.  
 

Strategic Justification 
 
Why are we asking for support on accessibility,  the public realm, and developing a 
spatial masterplan for York City Centre ?  
 
The quality of the city centre and its public realm is critical to the continued economic 
health of York. This is acknowledged in a number of key strategic documents 
including:  
 
• The Future York Group Report (2007)  - this set out a number of key 

recommendations including developing a clear masterplan to guide 
development and investment decisions; continued growth in tourism spend; and 

Page 9



delivering transformational enhancements to York’s visitor attractions and to 
the quality of the public realm (Recommendations E4 and P6).  One of the 
significant actions identified was “improved streets and public spaces with a 
high quality well designed public realm, that is spectacular both by day and 
night with an exciting programme of events and activities for residents and 
visitors.” (page 7). It also says that  “City of York Council should give priority to 
improving the quality of the public realm across the historic city including 
paving, lighting, signage and public spaces.” (page 24). It  states that this will 
require a  creative approach to funding and the involvement of the public and 
private sectors. Through the City Centre AAP  the Council is taking up this 
challenge. 

 
• The Sustainable Community Strategy (2008) has high level objectives for 

amongst other things a Thriving City and a City of Culture. Under a Thriving 
City it identifies a lack of investment in the city’s heritage and tourist industry 
with increasing competition and a fall in visitor numbers. It seeks investment in 
the heritage and cultural infrastructure to support this. Under the City of Culture 
it has a Strategic Aim, amongst other things “to be a city of high quality spaces” 
with actions to achieve this identified as: 

- an urban design plan 
- creating attractive and stimulating spaces 
- de-cluttered and creatively lit spaces 
- spaces will be linked with clear and perhaps themed routes 
- river fronts opened up and their opportunities exploited. 

The City Centre AAP will be the overarching plan for York City Centre to 
achieve these key objectives.  

 

• The Visit York partnership document “York a Vision for Tourism” (2009) is 
seeking to achieve 5% average annual growth in expenditure to support the 
10,000 plus jobs in tourism. One of the seven ‘key ambitions’ to deliver the new 
vision for  tourism is: “enhance York’s public realm so that it becomes the most 
special in England.”  The City Centre AAP will have a central role in delivering 
this objective.             

 

• The York Economic Programme (2009) -  this recognizes that the city centre 
is the economic powerhouse of the local economy. There are over 30,000 jobs 
in or on the edge of the city centre, the biggest concentration of employment in 
the City of York. Creating the right conditions in the city centre to enhance 
economic vitality is therefore crucial. The programme identifies a number of 
initiatives to enhance the quality of the public realm and ensure the city centre 
is a vibrant location for events and activities. The City Centre AAP will provide 
the overarching plan to address these issues and ensure all parts of the city 
centre, including it public realm and the peripheral streets can play a valuable 
economic role. 

 

• The City Centre Area Action Plan (2008) -  the AAP Issues and Options 
Consultation (Summer 2008) generated very strong support for public realm 
improvements in general and for a combination of those options in the report 
that dealt with public realm issues.  A key message from this first stage of the 
AAP was that improvements need to be coordinated and holistic, yet 
appropriate to specific spaces.  This reflected the objective of York’s 
Community Strategy to increase the City’s cultural offer and support a greater 
level of public exchange through festivals and events in York’s public spaces. 

 
The Preferred Options (next stage) of the AAP will introduce a City Centre 
Spatial Masterplan.  The Spatial Masterplan element of the City Centre AAP will 

Page 10



provide a co-coordinated approach to enhancing the public realm, identifying 
new development opportunities in the city centre and maximizing the wider 
benefits from new developments and areas of potential such as Castle 
Piccadilly, the Cultural Quarter, Gateway Streets etc.  

 

The key role of the City Centre Area Action Plan  
 

The City Centre AAP is the first comprehensive review of York City Centre in over 40 
years, last one being the Esher Report in 1968.  The Future York Group Report June 
2007 includes a key recommendation that the Council prepare a Masterplan, 
reflecting  the Future York Vision, to guide development and investment decisions, 
and promote investment.  We see the historic city centre,  representing the  
international image of York and also its economic powerhouse, as the priority for 
such a masterplan.  
 
The York  City Centre Area Action Plan is the ideal process from which to deliver a 
City Centre Masterplan for York.  The AAP will provide a 20 year vision, strategy and 
policies to build on its current strengths and address key weaknesses. 
 
The AAP will provide a robust grounding in the York LDF providing conformity with 
national and regional planning objectives, conformity with the aims  of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy, as well as having statutory status once adopted.   
 
Key elements of the City Centre AAP will be : 
 

• Policies – a  suite of policies and allocations to guide future development. 
 

• A Spatial Masterplan – this will articulate the spatial vision and objectives for 
the city centre, focusing on public realm improvements, transport and 
accessibility proposals, and projects and initiatives for the main ‘action areas’ 
within the City Centre including regeneration of the peripheral areas. 

 
We want to develop a long term Strategy for the City Centre.  Quick fixes rarely work; 
what is needed is a sustained and durable commitment to transform York’s urban 
realm.  A willingness to make a long-term commitment is essential if the AAP is to 
deliver a successful Spatial Masterplan 

 
The Ask: We are looking for Yorkshire Forward support to develop the  Spatial 
Masterplan element of the AAP.  Further details of key strands of support we are 
seeking are set into the remainder of this note. 
 

City Centre AAP: Spatial Masterplan 
 
Introduction 
The City Centre Area Action Plan needs to promote diversity of activities and 
experience.  In promoting diversity, it will be important to exploit the opportunities 
presented by areas in transition - places, on the fringes of the City Centre, such as 
Hungate; Castle Piccadilly, Layerthorpe; the Barbican, York Central and the Gateway 
Streets, where economic and social changes present opportunities for new types of 
business and lifestyles to flourish.  These areas should not be left to develop in 
isolation.  These spaces should be linked together (and integrated with the core of 
the city centre) through high quality pedestrian connections, forming a network of 
improved and enhanced spaces across the City Centre. 
 

Page 11



We can learn from the cosmopolitan culture that makes small European cities like 
Bruges and Freiberg successful. Making a place more cosmopolitan is partly about 
encouraging events, linkages and cultural activities that promote a sense of place.  
Examples closer to home include Sheffield where the Council have successfully 
implemented economic and urban regeneration initiatives, with key partner Agencies 
including Yorkshire Forward, by developing strategies to enhance public areas and 
improve key linkages. 
 
A proven way to make a city attractive to visitors is to make it attractive to its citizens. 
The way local people use the city - especially its public and semipublic spaces - 
creates the city experience.  Taking action now, in a time of economic downturn, will 
support local economies such as retail and tourism and give York an advantage over 
it’s competitors in times of recovery.   
 
Increasingly European cities including many in the UK are realising the social, 
economic and environmental benefits of urban strategies which create or renew 
urban spaces to ensure great public space.  This can be achieved alongside 
ensuring convenient vehicle access to service the city centre.  Well used and well 
designed city spaces help to retain a vibrant economy which in turn attracts local 
people and visitors to enjoy public life. 
 

Page 12



Production of the Spatial Masterplan  
Consultation on the Spatial Masterplan will be carried out through the AAP process at 
both Preferred Options and Publication stage.  The Masterplan will be developed to 
deliver, and will also be shaped by, the policies of the City Centre Area Action Plan.   
 
Through the production of the AAP the Council’s City Development Team will steer 
development of the Masterplan and act as ‘the client’. We are seeking support on key  
strands of work from Yorkshire Forward to move this forward. 
 
Any consultants appointed through this process will need to conduct a review of the 
Council’s objectives (coming out of the AAP Issues and Options) and work with a 
range of CYC officers to develop a Spatial Masterplan in time for public consultation 
on AAP Preferred Options in summer 2009.    
 
Further work required to produce a City Centre Spatial Masterplan 
 
We are looking for Yorkshire Forward support for some key strands of work to inform 
the development of our City Centre AAP:  
1.  Placecheck (or quality audit) 
2.  Placecheck analysis 
3.  City Centre Accessibility Masterplan 
4.  Completion of the Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal 
5.  Spatial Masterplan for AAP Preferred Options 
6.  Spatial Masterplan for AAP Publication 
7.  Public Realm specification and guidance document 
 
A summary of what is required under each strand of work is set out below. 
 
1. Placecheck (or quality audit), and 2. Analysis 
 
As a starting point we need to understand the quality of our spaces.  To measure 
quality effectively we must ask the right questions to the right audience.  It is 
important that our appreciation of quality is not just that of our own but also that of 
others.  Different perspectives will help us identify both what is good and what is bad 
in terms of how a place looks, feels, smells, and functions from the point of view of - 
a resident; a performer; a shopper; a tourist; someone with a physical disability; 
someone responsible for it’s maintenance and so on and so on.  It is also important 
to know what resources and skills might be available now and in the future that could 
benefit a place.   
 
‘Placecheck’ is a method of assessing the qualities of a place, showing what 
improvements are needed, and focusing people on working together to achieve 
them.  The Placecheck method was devised by Rob Cowan and developed on behalf 
of the Urban Design Alliance with funding from the DTLR (now CLG) and English 
Partnerships.  At the centre of the method, is a list of questions, ‘the Placechecklist’, 
which can be tailored to particular needs.  There are no set rules about who takes 
part in Placecheck but it is important to base this on the objectives of the exercise 
and in terms of the collaboration and action that may follow it. 
 
The organisers of the local Placecheck draw up their own tailor-made checklist after 
selecting the questions that seem most relevant and adding any more that seem 
important locally. This checklist is then distributed to participants in a walkabout or a 
meeting.  
 

The key work of Placecheck Audit and Analysis needs to start as soon as possible to 
be completed by April 2009 if the AAP is to keep on track. 

Page 13



 

The ask:  a facilitator is required to organise the ‘Placecheck’ and compile results. 
  
3.  City Centre Accessibility Masterplan 
 

The Spatial Masterplan must be developed with regard to work on the City Centre 
Accessibility Masterplan.  City of York Council Transport Planning Unit (TPU) are 
leading on the production of the Accessibility Masterplan and this must be a key 
consideration for the Spatial Masterplan in terms of both high level and site specific 
design themes and objectives.  
 
Following an officer workshop, in July 2008,  to consider the issues five specific 
areas to be investigated for accessibility and impacts of access changes were 
proposed: 

• Gateway Streets - Micklegate / Blossom Street, Fossgate / Walmgate, 
Goodramgate, Piccadilly, Stonebow / Peasholme Green and Bootham / 
Gillygate 

• Other potential Shopping Streets - Museum Street, Lendal, Duncombe Place, 
High Petergate and Castlegate 

• Cultural Quarter - St Leonard’s Place, Ouse Bridge and Leeman Road 

• Castle Piccadilly Piccadilly, Castlegate, Coppergate/Pavement and Clifford 
Street/Tower Street 

• York Central/York Northwest (iand the importance of links with the separate but 
overlapping York Northwest Area Action Plan) 

 

Work to complete the Accessibility Masterplan will be broken down in to four phases: 
 

• Phase 1 : A high level strategic review of public transport, walking and cycling 
routes into and within the city centre, including an assessment of what 
currently exists and how it is managed, together with an overview of key 
drivers for change. This is to be followed by an analysis of how and where 
these modes could access the city centre in the future and the implications for 
traffic management. (Work has begun but will require additional consultants 
support to be completed on schedule) 

• Phase 2 : Data gathering and analysis of the operation of the Footstreets 
zone, including a review of existing surveys, in conjunction with discussions 
with stakeholders and internal officer groups to assess the issues and 
consequently inform Phase 3 proposals. (This work is underway) 

• Phase 3 : Preparation of potential options for improvements or alterations to 
the city centre including the Footstreets Area and its operation.  Followed by 
wider consultation on these options with internal officers, stakeholders, 
interest groups and the general public and subsequent analysis, leading to 
the preparation of detailed proposals / scheme amendments and assessment 
of their impact. (This work is yet to be started) 

• Phase 4 : Seek appropriate permissions from relevant committees prior to 
implementation of modified Footstreets zone. (This work is yet to be started) 

 
Work will need to be completed by July 2009, so as to keep on-track with the AAP 
timetable. 
 
The Ask: Consultants support to help complete the Accessibility Masterplan by July 
2009.  
 
 

Page 14



4. Completion of the Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal 
 
The findings of the ongoing character appraisal of the Historic Core Conservation 
Area will form a key part of the Spatial Masterplan evidence base.  The character 
appraisal is currently being carried out by consultants on behalf of City of York 
Council and English Heritage.   
 

5. Spatial Masterplan for City Centre AAP Preferred Options  
 
City Centre AAP Preferred Options will set out the framework of the proposed Spatial 
Masterplan.   
 
Findings from the AAP Issues and Options consultation; the York city centre 
‘Placecheck’; York City Centre Accessibility Masterplan; and the Historic Core 
Conservation Area Appraisal will all be used to draw up the framework and key 
design principles for the Spatial Masterplan.  At Preferred Options the draft Spatial 
Masterplan (for consultation) will: 

• Contain high level design themes and objectives; 

• Identify a network of sites, spaces and key linkages across the city centre to be 
developed in response to the findings of the AAP Issues and Options consultation 
and the latest evidence base; 

• Set out objectives for each site, space or key linkage within the network (based 
on the findings of the key evidence base); 

• Include details on viability as well as delivery partners and tools; 

• Illustrate the strategy with diagrams and plans.     
 

The work to develop the draft Spatial Masterplan for the AAP Preferred Options 
document will need to take place between May and August 2009.  This will follow the 
key work on understanding the city centre public realm through the Placecheck 
process and other key evidence base outlined above. 
 
The Ask:  Consultants support will be required in urban design to help to develop, 
illustrate and articulate the framework and key design principles of the Spatial 
Masterplan ready for Preferred Options consultation in September 2009. 
 
6. Spatial Masterplan for City Centre AAP Submission Draft 
 
The AAP Submission Draft will contain the final York City Centre Spatial Masterplan.  
Primarily this will: 

• Contain high level design themes and objectives; 

• Develop a network of important spaces and key linkages across the city centre 
(periphery to core)   

• Identify change and explain the rationale behind new and renewed designs; 

• Develop a project plan or rolling programme of works to be carried out; 

• Demonstrate the strategy through a series of detailed visual concepts illustrating 
each strategic project and the linkages between them; 

 
The Spatial Masterplan will have two major components: 
 

1) Urban Network (similar to the songlines principle1) consisting of ‘city spaces’ 
and the key pedestrian links connecting them.  Spaces and linkages such as 
Parliament Street, Newgate, King’s Square, Exhibition Square, riversides and 

                                                      
1
 CYC Lottery funding bid (2006) which proposed to create a network of recognisable routes 

around the key spaces and features. Although unsuccessful the bid received very positive 
feedback from the funding board.     

Page 15



many more.  The urban network will be broader in nature and span across the 
whole city centre area.  It will be the overarching element of the Spatial 
Masterplan and the framework from which the major sites or ‘action areas’ 
(e.g. Castle Piccadilly, Cultural Quarter, Gateway Streets, the Barbican and 
Layerthorpe) will hang.  The network will include a series of interconnected 
urban squares and spaces that present a good opportunity for public realm 
interventions and investments.  These spaces differ from the main ‘action 
areas’ in that project delivery does not generally rely on the resolution of 
larger development.   The project will achieve an incremental yet significant 
improvement to the perception and prosperity of the City Centre by:      

o enhancing the character and quality of the city centre urban 
environment; 

o developing an interesting and exciting pedestrian experience 
throughout the city centre; 

o promoting and reinforcing the distinct character areas within the city; 
o providing spaces for social exchange; 
o introducing a hierarchy of spaces to aid orientation in the city centre; 
o attracting inward investment. 

  
2) Action Areas (or strategic projects) to be developed in accordance with the 

themes and objectives of the Spatial Masterplan.  These key sites consist of 
the main (re)development opportunities in the City Centre.  The objectives 
and concepts for each ‘action area’ will be presented in written and illustrative 
form.  Once developed these areas will contribute enormously to the 
formation of a network of improved and enhanced spaces as well as meeting 
AAP objectives in terms of retail, offices, leisure etc. 

 
Action Areas under consideration:   

• Castle Piccadilly;  

• Cultural Quarter;  

• Gateway Streets; 

• Ouse riverside  

• the Barbican;  

• Layerthorpe.   
 

The final Spatial Masterplan will contain site specific details on delivery such as 
delivery partners and tools; financial management and funding; contract 
management and legal issues etc. 
 
This work will need to take place between October 2009 and February 2010 following 
consultation on the AAP Preferred Options document in September 2009.  
 
The Ask:  Consultants support will be required in urban design to help to develop, 
illustrate and articulate the final spatial strategy through a range of presentation 
techniques.  At this stage  the Spatial Masterplan will require detailed design 
solutions that are both viable in terms of accessibility and deliverability. We would 
expect consultant support at the subsequent AAP public Examination. 
  
7.  Public Realm specification and guidance document  
The guidance document will be developed alongside/ following adoption of the AAP.  
It will be in conformity with the design themes and objectives of the Spatial 
Masterplan and the AAP policies and evidence base (e.g. Conservation Area 
Appraisal).  This associated document will set out guidance on the specification of 
works, e.g. materials, street furniture, signage, special needs, tree and planting, 
public art, sustainable quality, maintenance etc.  It will become the Council’s 

Page 16



guidance on works to implement the public realm strategy contained in the City 
Centre Spatial Masterplan.    
 
This more detailed work would commence from October 2009 onwards once a 
Submission AAP (Spatial Masterplan) is agreed. 
   
The Ask:  Consultants support will be required with expertise in public realm design 
and specification.  
 

Conclusion 
 
We have an unprecedented opportunity to deliver a 20 year strategy for the future 
health and prosperity of York City Centre. The historic core is the jewel in York’s 
crown and is also its its economic powerhouse with over 30,000 jobs located in or on 
the edge of York city centre.  
 
The importance of developing a clear masterplan and the need for a strong focus on 
public realm improvements have come from key strategic documents such as the 
Future York Group report, the sustainable Community Strategy and the Visit York 
partnership’s own vision document.  
 
The City Centre AAP will provide the framework for developing that vision and clear 
spatial masterplan.  
 
We are seeking some targeted support from Yorkshire Forward to complete the 
Spatial Masterplan as part of the City Centre Area Action Plan. 
 
We are more than happy to discuss our ideas in more detail if that would help. 
 
 
 
Directorate of City Strategy 
City of York Council 
February 2009 
 
 
Contact for further information: 
 
Dave Caulfield 
Head of City Development 
Tel:01904 551313 
 
 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	6 Briefing Report on the City Centre Experience
	AAP Spatial Master Plan final note RB_DMC


